
From: Charles Stewart; Pro-Tem Presiding Judicial Officer,
Supreme Court of Law for the USA; in Coleman Texas.
To: Bradford Herrick; in Massachusetts. 
Subject: Competent Strategy for Saving the Republick.
Date: 2021-July-09; Friday; 10:30-pm, central-time.

Brad:

I began writing this email’s text & pdf-document during your last Union Conference Call, on 
the 7th of July, 2021; & I expected to finish it that evening, but these issues were more complex than 
what I first calculated, & I also suffered computer problems. And please share this email with Bill, & 
with others, as you deem appropriate; perhaps even including that military general whom you say you 
communicate regularly with. 

I believe These Issues are of Critical Importance to Every Honorable American Patriot; & that 
this discussion deserves to be widely disseminated.  Here-under; I request that you affirm that you have
no objection to my also sharing this email with other Honorable American Patriots in our circles.  

Here-under, I ask that you join with me in focusing our mutual attention on the Agenda   which is  
currently   being pursued in your Union Conference Calls  , & which seems mostly promoted by Bill.  
That Agenda seems to me, clearly, to be Prioritizing the Directing of our Patriotic   Individual   Member  s   
to Separately Invest their Limited Time, Energy,   & Money   Resources in   Attempting to Secure Their   
God-Given Natural-Rights, in manners which may Only Possibly Winn Small Gains for Individual 
Patriots, but which are Completely Worthless in Any Long-Term Strategy for Saving Our American 
Republick & Union of States.

More Specifically; that Agenda Prioritizes these Members Investing their Limited Resources in 
Learning to Competently   Use   the Uniform   Commercial   Code  , aka UCC; (which is a form of the 
Godless Roman Municipal/Civil Statutory-Codes); but Only To Use the Whimpy Parts there-of, 
because the Strategy Gurus advocating this “UCC Strategy” have become Terrorized with Fear, that, 
Using The Full Power of the UCC will cause the Corrupted Jack-Booted Nazi Murders in & 
surrounding USA DeFacto Government to Respond with Violent Acts against our people.  (This 
strategy also seems to be including, that, these same Patriotic Members Learn how to Seek, & actually 
Edit & secure, copies of their Separate Individual “IRS-Master-Files”.) 

Now I have No Objection, to, (Eventually, & Possibly), Incorporating these Man-Made Legal-
Fiction Social-Engineering Strategies in-to our Larger Over-All Strategy.  But; it is My Carefully 
Considered Judgement, that, the Manner in which this “UCC Strategy” is being presented in your 
Union Conferences, is being promoted in manners which actually    Eclipse   & Obscure   our Godly & 
Constitutionally-Lawful “Duties” to Prioritize our Local Community Organizing   & Empowerment   
Strategies.  

It is My Further Judgement, that, if actually embraced by Our Community, that entire “UCC 
Strategy” (which Bill is promoting), will Cause Our Community to Fall In-To   “Fatal Error  ”, & to 
Cause the “Doom & Destruction of our Union of States” & of our Republickan Form of Government. 

I make these boldly confrontational statements, because, this “UCC Strategy” is Based Solidly 
on M  an-  M  ade   Legal-Fiction S  ocial-  E  ngineering   Schemes  , all of which is in Direct Violat  ion of our   
“Higher Law Duties” to Prioritize Our Obedience to the “Laws of Nature & of Nature’s God”. 

Here-under; your Union Assembly Conference Patriot Attendees are being   Indoctrinated   with 
that Agenda which Promotes the “Ideology”   of Investing our Time & Energy Resources in   Seeking   
Remedies thru   Un-Natural Man-Made Social-Engineering   Schemes  . The Worst Part, is, that, that same 
“UCC Strategy”, as being promoted by Bill in your Conferences, is being allowed to actually   Eclipse   &  
Distract from our Godly Christian   Priority   of Building our Responsibly Self-Governing Organic 



Constitutional Body-Politic Communities.  This would especially include our Exodus-18 Bible-Law & 
Torah-Law Command From God to Organize & Build Our Local & Common-Law Compliant 
Township  s   & Precinct-Level/Hundred-Court Communities  . 

These issues are all seriously concerned with the Nature of the Conflict Against the Violently 
Warmongering, & Treasonous Aristocratic Parasite-Class Community, which our Patriotic Organic 
Body-Politic Community has long been suffering deep entanglement in.  Here-under; our Patriotic 
Community  needs to Collectively Prioritize our Building a Consensus which Recognizes, that, When 
People Freely Chose to Engage In Corruption, & to Criminally Violate Our Constitutionally-
Guaranteed Anglo/American “Natural Rights”; then they are “At War”, Against Our Entire 
Anglo/American Organic Body-Politic.  

They are the “Aggressors”.  They are the ones who are Causing the Criminal “Breach of the 
Peace”. They are the ones In “Trespass”, as against Our Body-Politic Community’s “Natural Rights”.

Here-under; We are   Lawfully &   Judicially   Commanded & Mandated By God   to Form 
Community Consensus thru Juries from Our Responsibly Self-Governing Sixth & Seventh Amendment
Common-Law Compliant Courts; & there-under to Prepare to Effectively “Defend” the Members of 
Our Self-Governing Communitys from   those   Parasitic   Criminal   Conspirator  s  , who are so engaged in 
their self-evident & Massive Criminal Conspiracy to Posture as Legitimate “Public Servants”.

But, in direct contrast there-with; Bill   seems entrenched in   insisting that our Community’s 
Collective-Consciousness devote close to Exclusive & Highest Priority to us  ing   a   Watered-Down   
version of “  UCC Strategy  ”, (similar to that which Leroy Schweitzer & the Montana Freemen used). 
Bill actually Advocates our Using even L  ess   Seriously Confrontational UCC-Strategy  , than that which 
finally resulted in the complete earthly Doom of Schweitzer & the Freemen.  Bill attempts to justify his
whimpy strategy, thru theorizing, that, if we “play nice” with these murdering jack-booted nazis, that, 
they will give us most of the rights which we claim, at least if we don’t claim any which have any 
serious potential to set a preceedent for causing the fall & destruction of the entire babylonian-whore, 
commercially militarized evil-empire. 

That is a “Godless Strategy”; Brad.  That is an “Un-Natural Strategy”, Brad. 

Schweitzer & the Freemen were already Organizing their Common-Law Compliant & 
Responsibly Self-Governing Local Communities.  The one they already had set-up & functioning, was 
known as “Justus Township”; & they had been promoting others, except they became distracted with 
the “UCC Strategy”.  And the Only Reason that the Corrupted Feds Refrained from Prosecuting the 
Freeman for as long as they did, was, because the Freeman were Plausibly Claiming Their “Common-
Law Jurisdiction”, “On the Land”, in “Justus Township”. That was a Legal/Lawful Argument that the 
Defacto Feds Absolutely Could Not Beat; & it there-by caused chaos & confusion in the corrupted fed 
prosecutors offices & judiciary offices. 

Bill seems Not Claiming Any Similarly Powerful “Law of the Land” Grounding, for his 
watered-down “UCC Strategy”; & there-under, modern patriots following that strategy are seriously 
vulnerable to becoming squished like buggs. 

The Freemen had come to realize, that, when Prioritizing the Organizing of our Self-Governing 
Communities, one there-under has accompanying Self-Governing Community “Duties”, to Effectively 
Defend Against Aggressively Warring & Peace-Breaching Criminals, including even those who 
routinely posture as municipal Public-Servants.  That is a Big Project, which Requires a Complete 
Devotion, similar to a Religious Person’s Devotion to God, as you will surely recognize. 

Leroy & the Freemen had also become aware of the seemingly powerful remedies offered thru 
the UCC; just as Bill is now promoting.  Leroy & the Freemen then Made a Strategic “Decision”, to 



Avoid the Work & Danger which likely would Result, eventually,  from Establishing Our Own 
Constitutionally-Lawful & Common-Law Compliant Courts, & there-under “Keeping the Peace“, with 
“What-Ever Force is Necessary”.

Here-under; Leroy & the Freemen made the   Quick & Easy   Decision to Embrace a “  Less   
Confrontational   Strategy  ”, thru Trusting that the Corrupted   Municipal Governmental   Judges   would 
Seriously Respect the Rules of the Man-Made Municipal Social-Engineering Scheme, which is known 
as the “Uniform Commercial Code”, aka the “UCC”. 

But w  hen the Corrupted Judges Railroaded the Freemen In-to Prison  ; the “Light Finally Went 
Of in the  ir     H  eads  ”, to the effect, that, “They Made a Bad Decision”, when they decided to 
Trust that the Corrupted Judges would Respect the Municipal Social-Engineering Scheme which is 
known as the “UCC”. 

I was involved in that event. I then heard reliable & un-controverted testimony, that, Leroy 
Clearly Declared, that, (at least Concerning any Cases which are seriously Capable of even Possibly 
Promoting Return to the Ideal of a “More Perfect Union” under Republican & Common-Law Principles
of Local Community Self-Governing); that, there is Absolutely “No Remedy”   T  o   B  e   S  ecured, thru Any  
Strategy which Required Trust of the Municipal Government’s Judiciary; & that included the seriously 
confrontational use of the UCC that they had then been prioritizing.

In larger context, & to summarize; Leroy & the Freemen First Chose to use a “UCC Strategy”, 
Only Because, they wanted to Avoid the Work of Local Community Organizing, & also to Avoid   Using   
“Criminal Prosecutions” to More   Seriously Confront the many Corrupted Municipal Government   
Office-Holders. 

After the first month or so of their imprisonment; Leroy had clearly Admitted that their entire 
“UCC Strategy” was   a “Completely Hopeless Strategy  ” For bringing about Any Significant Positive 
Change for our Common American People.  Leroy then Admitted, Because of the Extreme & Deep 
Corruption in the Fed & State Municipal Judicial Systems, that his entire “UCC Strategy” was a 
Completely Wasted & Worthless Effort.  (I have multiple letters from Leroy in storage, where, as I 
recall, Leroy Admitted this there-in. And I know that Leroy Admitted this verbally; as I have heard it 
from multiple reliable witnesses.)  This was painfully “Self-Evident” To All, after they got rail-roaded 
in the Shamm-Trial which Destroyed all of Their Heroic Efforts, at least out-side of memories like this 
discussion.  
 But again, in larger context, & to summarize;  Leroy & the Freemen Decided to “Avoided 
Direct Confrontation” thru their Strategy of Using the UCC in Seriously Confrontational Manners.  
That is a “Less Confrontational” Strategy, than the Christian Common-Law Community Organizing & 
Peace-Keeping Strategy, which was the only other option available to the Freemen. 

Leroy & the Freemen later Admitted, effectively, that, their “UCC Strategy” was a “Bad 
Choice”; &, in essence, that, we are “At War” against the Corrupted Municipal Executive & Judiciary 
Classes, with a small percentage of exceptions; & that “We Need To Be More Confrontational”, against
those blood-drinking satanists, & Not Less Confrontational. 

But now, Bill here is Dominating our Conferences by A  dvocating   that our Community Return 
to that same basic Strategy of using the UCC, only in Even “Less Confrontational Manners” than how 
the Freemen were so courageously using it.

I  t is My Judgement  , Brad, that, in this larger context; Bill’s Strategy amounts to “Cowardice & 
Doom”.  It amounts to “Capitulation”.  It amounts to “Surrender”. Effectively; it Abandons Completely
the Idea of Creating & Organizing & Populating Our Own “Responsibly Self-Governing 
Communities”.  



Further; Bill’s Strategy does Not Effectively Confront the Military Threat from the Parasitical 
Oppressor Body-Politic Conspirators.  When People such as those Freely Chose to Engage In 
Criminally Violating Our Constitutionally-Guaranteed Anglo/American “Natural Rights”; then They 
are “At War”, as Against our Anglo/American Organic Body-Politic. 

Here-under; Bill’s Watered-down UCC-Strategies, & IRS Master-File searchings, are Not 
“Effective Defense Strategies”, as Against the Brutal Military Nature of the modern Municipal Defacto 
Governmental Threat, which so clearly exists as Against our modern Anglo/American Organic Body-
Politic Community. 

Again; I have No Inherent Objection to Using Some of those Man-Made Remedy Strategies in 
our Larger Strategy;  but, we Must Not Allow such to Eclipse or Obstruct or Distract from our Higher 
Duties to God to First Prioritize our Organizing Our Local Responsibly Self-Governing Communities. 

On a Separate Note of Concern, in our last Union Conference, & his (massively time 
consuming) presentation there-in; Bill s  poke in manners which   Promot  ed Trust in   “Sheriff Mack”, &   
“Robert David Steel”. In my cell-phone’s text to you last night, I informed you, that, competent 
research completed, & solidly recognized among the better informed in our Patriotic Community, is the
common-knowledge fact that both of those named men are extremely likely Cointelpro Subversives, 
who are only active in our  communities, in their malicious efforts to hinder any significant progress 
that the more enlightened among us might be capable of actually making.  

For the record here, I transcribe most of the text messages which I then sent to you, as follows:
“Brad, I believe Bill is Leading Your Assembly In-to Destruction and Doom. … We can Not 

Look to the Military to Save Us. This is the Reason Why We Must Organize Our Own County Level 
Military as Peace Officers and Constables under Posse Comitatus. … 

“Both Sheriff Mack and Robert Steel are Cointelpro Subversives. And Bill should be smart 
enough to know that. … Why did Bill Not Waite till After he had Investigated Them before he Publicly 
Praised Them? And tell Bill to give me a call.  I will bring him up to speed on lots of these subversives.
He should not be embarrassing our Assembly by praising commonly recognized subversives.  If he 
would communicate more like an equal team-player, we can cure these embarrassments.”

For further reference, I am capable of producing videos which produce powerful Evidence of 
the Subversive Agenda of “Robert David Steel”.  Steel is Ex-CIA.  That alone should give even Bill 
serious apprehension about trusting or promoting Steel.  

And I have older conference recordings, & I still have regular conference attendees in our 
Supreme Court of Law, who have Witnessed first-hand the Subversive Activities of Ex-Sheriff 
“Richard Mack”. 

We are in “Low Intensity Warfare”, Brad; & that is all slowly but surely Progressing to “Higher 
Intensity Warfare”; & Unless We Get really Serious about Getting Our Own House In Order, then 
America & the Cause of Liberty & Republickan Self-Government id Doomed to Destruction. 

Respectfully. 
God’s Will Be Done. 

Charles Stewart; in Texas; 
& in the name of, & on the behalf of, the common People of the USA.   


